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161. Defendants did not have the legal authority to take some of the actions 

they threatened. 

162; Defendants' representations were designed to increase the likelihood that 

consumers would repay the debt. 

163. Defendants admitted to their ODFI service provider that, "in order to 

garnish wages Northway would have to get a judgement [sic] first. Since Northway does 

not sue individuals in the United States, wage garnishment is not available to Northway 

as a method to collect form US customers. In addition, Northway has no intention in 

employing garnishment as a collection technique." 

164. Defendants' representations to US consumers regarding the actions 

Defendants would take were false and misleading and constitute deceptive acts in 

violation of 12 U.S.C. § 5536(a)(1)(B). 

VIOLATION OF THE CREDIT PRACfiCES RULE 

165. The Credit Practices Rule (CPR) is a rule promulgated by the Federal 

Trade Commission (FfC) under Section 18 of the FfCAct, 15 U.S.C. § 57a. 

166. The Bureau is authorized to enforce a rule prescribed under the FTC Act 

by the FTC with respect to an unfair or deceptive act or practice to the extent that such 

rule applies to a covered person or service provider with respect to the offering or 

provision of a consumer financial product or service as if it were a rule prescribed under 

section 1031, 12 U.S.C. § 5531, of the CFPA. The Bureau therefore may enforce the CPR. 

12 u.s.c. § 5581(b)(s)(B)(ii). 

167. The CPR defines a "lender" as "a person who engages in the business of 

lending money to consumers within the jurisdiction of the Federal Trade Commission." 

16 C.F.R. § 444.1(a). 
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168. Northway and Northway Broker are "lenders" as defined under the CPR 

and are "covered persons" under the CFPA. 

169. The Credit Practices Rule prohibits lenders, in connection with the 

extension of credit to consumers, from taking or receiving from a consumer an 

obligation that constitutes or contains an assignment of wages or other earnings unless: 

(i) the assignment by its terms is revocable at the will of the debtor, (ii) the assignment 

is a payroll deduction plan or preauthorized payment plan, commencing at the time of 

the transaction, in which the consumer authorizes a series of wage deductions as a 

method of making each payment, or (iii) the assignment applies only to wages or other 

earnings already earned at the time of the assignment. 16 C.F.R. § 444.2(a)(3). 

170. The Bureau is authorized to bring a civil action against any person that 

violates the CPR. 12 U.S.C. §§ 5564(a), SS8t(b)(S)(B)(ii). 

Count VII 

Conditioning the Extension of Credit on an Irrevocable Wage Assignment Clause 

171. The Bureau realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-170 of 

this Complaint. 

172. In numerous instances, in connection with the extension of credit to 

consumers, Defendants have taken or received from consumers an obligation that 

constitutes or contains an assignment of wages or other earnings where the assignment: 

(i) by its terms is not revocable at the will of the consumer, (ii) is not a payroll deduction 

plan or preauthorized payment plan, commencing at the time of the transaction, in 

which the consumer authorizes a series of wage deductions as a method of making each 

payment, and (iii) does not apply only to wages or other earnings already earned at the 
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time of the assignment, in violation of Section 444.2(a)(3) of the Credit Practices Rule, 

16 C.F.R. § 444.2(a)(3). 

Count VIII 

Unfairness Relating to Conditioning the Extension of Credit on an Irrevocable Wage 
Assignment Clause 

173. The Bureau realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-172 of 

this Complaint. 

174. Defendants' practice of conditioning some loan agreements upon 

irrevocable wage assignment clauses caused or was likely to cause substantial injury to 

consumers. 

175. Wage assignments occur without the procedural safeguards of a hearing 

and opportunity to assert defenses or counter claims. 

176. The use of irrevocable wage assignments causes serious and detrimental 

interference with employment relationships, negatively affects promotions, pay raises, 

and job assignments, and can result in job loss. 

177. Further, the use of irrevocable wage assignments disrupts consumers' 

finances and can make it difficult for a consumer to purchase necessities or discharge 

other obligations in a timely fashion. 

178. Consumers cannot reasonably avoid these injuries because some loans are 

conditioned upon the wage assignment clause and are irrevocable. 

179. Finally, these injuries are not outweighed by countervailing benefits to 

consumers or to competition. 

180. Defendants' actions constitute unfair acts in violation of 12 U.S.C. 

§ 5536(a)(1)(B). 
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THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

181. Under Section 1055 of the CFPA, 12 U.S.C. § 5565, this Court has 

"jurisdiction to grant any appropriate legal or equitable relief with respect to a violation 

of Federal consumer financial law .. . "including the CFPA. 12 U.S.C. § 5565(a)(1). This 

relief includes rescission, refund of monies, restitution, disgorgement or compensation 

for unjust enrichment, payment of damages or other monetary relief, public notification 

regarding the violation, limits on the activities or functions of the person, and civil 

money penalties. 12 U.S. C. § 5565(a)(2). In addition, the CFPB may recover its costs in 

connection with the action, if it is the prevailing party. 12 u.s.c. § 5565(b). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

182. Wherefore, the CFPB, pursuant to Sections 1054 and 1055 of the CFP A, 12 

U.S.C. §§ 5564 and 5565, and the Court's own equitable powers, request that the Court: 

a. Permanently enjoin the Defendants from committing future violations 

of the CFP A, the CPR, or any other provision of "Federal consumer 

financial law," as defined by 12 U.S.C. § 5481(14); 

b. Award damages and other monetary relief as the Court finds necessary 

to redress injury to consumers resulting from the Defendants' 

violations of the CFP A and CPR including but not limited to restitution 

and the refund of monies paid; 

c. Order disgorgement against Defendants of ill-gotten gains; 

d. Award the costs of bringing this action; 

e. Award other injunctive relief as appropriate, including but not limited 

to the cessation of collection activities and the correction of 

information furnished to any credit reporting agencies; and 
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f. Award additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and 

proper. 

Dated: July 2, 2015 Respectfully submitted, 

Anthony Alexis 
Enforcement Director 

Deborah Morris 
Deputy Enforcement Director 

ta ie R. Williams 
Charles R. Gayle 
Edward J. Reilly 
Enforcement Attorneys 
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau 
1700 G Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20552 
Telephone (Gayle): 202-435-9555 
Telephone (Reilly): 202-435-9426 
Fax: 202-435-7722 
E-mail: charlie.gayle@cfpb.gov 
E-mail: edward.reilly@cfpb.gov 
Attorneys for Consumer Financial Protection Bureau 
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